
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 9, 2021 AT 6:45 PM

ELECTRONIC – INFORMATION BELOW

AGENDA

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance.

Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

Chair Nancy Bird, Commissioners Tom McGann, John Baenen, Chris Bolin, Trae 

Lohse, Mark Hall, and Sarah Trumblee

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of February 18, 2021 Regular Meeting...................................................................................Page 2

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

6. CORRESPONDENCE

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Guest Speakers

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker)

8. PLANNER’S REPORT ............................................................................................................................Page 6

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Final Plat Approval for Cannery Row Addition 1 ................................................................................Page 7

b. Final Plat Approval for Scott Subdivision ............................................................................................Page 11

c. Final Plat Approval for Pettingill Subdivision......................................................................................Page 15

d. Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse” .............Page 19

e. Resolution 21-01 – 2021 Land Disposal Maps.....................................................................................Page 36

A resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska recommending the City

Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska adopt the 2021 Land Disposal Maps

f. Letter of Interest from Dutch Marine Industries, LLC for a Portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2.......Page 54

10. PENDING CALENDAR .........................................................................................................................Page 60

a. March 2021 Calendar............................................................................................................................Page 61

b. April 2021 Calendar..............................................................................................................................Page 62

11. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/346686077

You can also dial in using your phone.

United States: +1 (669) 224-3412

Access Code: 346-686-077

If you are experiencing any trouble connecting to the meeting, please call 907-424-6220.

Chair

Nancy Bird

Vice Chair

Mark Hall

Commissioners

Tom McGann

John Baenen

Chris Bolin

Trae Lohse

Sarah Trumblee

City Planner

Leif Stavig

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/346686077
tel:+16692243412,,346686077


Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 18, 2021

Page 1 of 4

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

FEBRUARY 18, 2021 AT 6:30 PM

ELECTRONIC

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Nancy Bird called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:41 PM on February 

18, 2021 held electronically and open to the public.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Chair Nancy Bird and Commissioners John Baenen, Chris Bolin, Trae 

Lohse, Mark Hall, and Sarah Trumblee. Tom McGann was absent.

Also present was City Planner Leif Stavig.

No one from the public was in attendance.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/Hall S/Lohse to approve the agenda.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 6-0.

Yea: Bird, Baenen, Bolin, Lohse, Hall, Trumblee

Absent: McGann

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of January 19, 2021 Regular Meeting

M/Bolin S/Hall to approve the consent calendar.

Bird said she had an addition to the minutes on page 6. At the end of Ken Jones’s comments, she 

proposed the addition: “Jones suggested the Planning Commission could reconsider its motion now and 

still recommend review by the Harbor Commission.” Stavig said as the author of the minutes, he agreed 

with the proposed change. There was no objection to the change.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 6-0.

Yea: Bird, Baenen, Bolin, Lohse, Hall, Trumblee

Absent: McGann

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

6. CORRESPONDENCE

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Guest Speakers

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items

Page 2 of 62

planner2
Stamp



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 18, 2021

Page 2 of 4

8. PLANNER’S REPORT

Stavig said he was willing to start in-person meetings whenever the Planning Commission was ready. 

He said the impound lot would have a staff presentation and discussion at the City Council meeting on 

March 3rd. It has been on the pending calendar for the City Council for a while, which is the reason it is 

coming up at the council level. The lot has gone through the land disposal process a number of times, 

the last of which council ultimately decided to not move forward with disposing of the lot. Stavig said 

he wanted to make it clear that with Robert’s Rules and the agenda, the memos he prepares include a 

suggested motion, but it is appropriate for the commission to make any motion as long as it pertains to 

the topic presented on the agenda. 

Stavig said at the meeting last month, they made a motion to reconsider, which they never voted on. 

Instead, they voted on the motion they were considering reconsidering. From Robert’s Rules: “If a 

question of order is to be raised, it must be raised promptly, at the time the breach occurs.” The only 

exception to this, is if it is a breach of “continuing nature,” which is defined as “an action of continuing 

force and effect.” Since the error was made at their last meeting, it would not be appropriate to call a 

point of order now. The agenda item will be coming back to the Planning Commission at their next 

meeting. 

Bird said the error in the process was made by not voting on the actual motion to reconsider and instead 

jumping straight to the motion to recommend to City Council. While this might have resulted in a 

different outcome that night, the Planning Commission will be reviewing the issue again next month, 

possibly with additional information from the Harbor Commission. Both commissions’ 

recommendations are to the City Council who makes the final decision. Time may have been “lost” in 

the process due to our error, but additional information may be gained.

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. 2021 Land Disposal Maps – Discussion

Stavig said he provided the maps with either aerial photography for the commission to decide which 

they liked best. He explained the changes to the map which were detailed in the memo. He then 

provided information on properties that he said would be addressed at the meeting:

- Small triangle lot to south of Shelter Cove: It has deed restrictions including that it can’t be 

sold. The entire lot is in a floodplain and is zoned Conservation.

- Corner of Nicholoff and Railroad Avenue: Those are three lots used for the boat haul out on 

the South Fill. There is a “floating easement” on the property, which means it is undefined. 

- Two lots adjacent and south of Center Drive: These have old deed restrictions for well use, 

and also contain a lot of drainage from the highway. The flat land visible from the highway 

is a part of the ROW. 

- Two lots at cul-de-sac end of Center Drive: The longer lot has a sewer easement which 

restricts usable area significantly. He did not see anything on the other lot, but noted that in 

the past, both of these lots had been marked as snow dumps.

Hall said he preferred the newer aerial photos. Lohse agreed and said he would like to look into 

making the lower of the two lots on the Center Drive cul-de-sac ‘Available.’ Stavig said he would 

get something from Public Works for the next meeting. Bolin said the lots south of Center Drive 

were critical for snow storage, but they never used the cul-de-sac lots. Baenen said he would like 

to have a label on the quarry on Orca Road. Bolin said to add one for the burn pile as well. 

Page 3 of 62

planner2
Stamp



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 18, 2021

Page 3 of 4

b. Resolution 21-02

A resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska supporting efforts by 

the State of Alaska and FEMA to conduct a snow avalanche and landslide hazards assessment 

in and around the City of Cordova

M/Lohse S/Trumblee to approve Resolution 21-02.

Stavig said it is a great study for the city to get done. These types of studies get facilitated by the 

state so there isn’t any project management that the city has to do. There was a similar study 

completed recently for tsunamis. They had a crude map before, and were able to get much more 

specific data. The city knows nothing about landslide hazards. There have been some avalanche 

studies, but technology has improved with LiDAR. He suspects this will be most useful for utility 

planning. For example, they have noticed some possible landslide activity around one of the city 

water sources, which can cause turbidity. It would be useful to better understand what is going on 

in this instance and be able to plan future projects around such hazards. Trumblee said that anytime 

they can get studies completed that are paid for by others is a win-win. 

Upon voice vote, resolution passed 6-0.

Yea: Bird, Baenen, Bolin, Lohse, Hall, Trumblee

Absent: McGann

c. Building Codes - Discussion

Stavig gave a presentation on the applicable building codes and regulations for Cordova. This was 

last worked on by the previous City Planner, and the Planning Commission at the time had concurred 

to proceed with adopting the AHFC building codes. He still needs to figure out what has been 

completed to that end. 

Baenen, Lohse, Bolin agreed that this was the direction they should be headed in. Trumblee asked 

about who checks credentials for people involved in contracting. Stavig said that the state has some 

information to help people hire contractors, but he does wish there was more. It’s hard for the 

average homeowner to know all of the laws that contractors have to abide by. Professional licensing 

goes through the state, and they do have enforcement officials. Stavig explained that inspections 

only occur when someone is applying for AHFC financing. The city does not have a building 

inspector. Ultimately, individual property owners have a lot of responsibility when it comes to hiring 

contractors. Many local contractors understand what the requirements are. 

Stavig said that adopting new building codes wouldn’t significantly alter current processes, but it 

does set the city up to move in a direction of having inspections if that is the direction the city wants 

to go into. Bird said that at one time there was a building inspector, but that didn’t work for very 

long. Hall said that he chose not to get his new house inspected, but he did look into his contractors. 

It comes down to personal responsibility of the landowner. 

Bird said she’d like to take this up again in April or May when McGann could be present. Stavig 

said he would delve deeper into what had been done in the past. Sometimes editing code seems 

simpler than it really is. In the past, it quickly got complicated when they tried to adopt all of the 

AHFC amendments; he would like to see if there is any way to adopt the code by reference. His 

biggest concern at this point is if there is any concern about adopting the codes in general. 

Page 4 of 62

planner2
Stamp



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 18, 2021

Page 4 of 4

10. PENDING CALENDAR

Stavig said that a lot of commissioners attended the Planning Conference at the last one he attended, so 

if there was any interest in the future for participation with that, let him know. 

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

Baenen thanked the commission.

Trumblee thanked Stavig for the maps, and said she looked forward to the Planning Commissioner 

training. 

Hall said they had a good meeting. 

Bolin thanked everyone for their time, and appreciated the new maps. He was also looking forward to 

code revisions. He said the city put on a presentation about Proposition 2, which is available online. 

Lohse said he appreciated the new maps, and looked forward to future building code discussions.

13. ADJOURNMENT

M/Bolin S/Hall to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 7:52 PM.

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________

Nancy Bird, Chair

____________________________

Leif Stavig, City Planner 

Page 5 of 62

planner2
Stamp



Planner’s Report
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 3/4/21

Re: Recent Activities and Updates

 Medium traffic from public with misc. planning questions, i.e., subdivisions, permits, maps, zoning, 

property purchasing, etc.

 Planning Conference Feb. 23-25. Anything of note from the Planning Commissioner’s Training?

 Assisting with Harbor planning efforts, possible consultant work around needs assessment/update to 

harbor plan.

 Craig Kuntz Letter of Interest – RFP advertised, proposals Due March 8th.

 Attended Harbor Commission meeting, re: Land Disposal Maps and Forest Service Lease. 

 Ordinance requiring Certificate to Plat passed City Council.

 Working on several different plats, some admin, some requiring approval.

 Meeting with attorney to go over building code adoption. 

 Prepared packet and completed minutes for Planning Commission Regular Meeting.

Page 6 of 62



Final Plat Approval for Cannery Row Addition 1

Page 1 of 2

AGENDA ITEM # 9a

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/9/21

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/4/21

ITEM: Final Plat Approval for Cannery Row Addition 1

NEXT STEP: Approve Motion

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Final Plat Approval

Applicant: Greg Meyer

Owner: Greg Meyer and Sylvia Lange  

Address: 500 Cannery Row

Zoning: Waterfront Historical District 

Attachments: Location Map of unsubdivided property

Final Plat

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Staff recommend that the commission recommend to City Council that the request for final plat approval 

be approved.

Page 7 of 62



Final Plat Approval for Cannery Row Addition 1

Page 2 of 2

“I move to recommend to City Council to approve the final plat request for Cannery Row Addition 1.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

This plat creates six new lots by subdividing one large parcel. 

All property owners within 300 feet of the subdivision have been informed of the subdivision and the 

public hearing. As of the date of this memo, staff have not received any comments.

A Certificate to Plat for this property has been ordered by the surveyor and must be submitted to the 

Planning Department prior to recording the final plat.

Staff findings:

1. The proposed plat conforms to the Comprehensive Plan and City Code.

2. There are no known physical conditions present which may be hazardous to the future inhabitants 

of these tracts.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

No legal review required.

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

Page 8 of 62



OR
CA
RO
A
D

C
A
N
N
E
R
Y
R
O
W

C
O
P
P
E
R
R
IV
E
R
H
IG
H
W
A
Y

±
0 210 420105

Feet

Page 9 of 62



USMS 878

Amended USS 829 (Remainder)

Cordova
Elect.

A.T.S. 220

SCALE:

GRID No:

WORK ORDER No:

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

DATE:

FB BOOK/PAGE:

SHEET:

DRAWING NAME:

SE
RV

IN

G
ALA

SKA SINCE
19 82

Date

Cordova, Alaska  99574
P.O. BOX  120
The Cannery Row, Inc.

We hereby certify that we are the owners of the property shown and described
hereon.  We hereby request approval of this plat showing such easements for

public utilities, roadways, and alleys dedicated for public use.

Date

Cordova, Alaska  99574
P.O. BOX 120
Sylvia R Lange

on this plat have been paid through ____________________.

All real property taxes are levied by the City of Cordova on the area shown

DateAttest:  City Clerk

DatePlatting Official

DateChairman, Planning & Zoning Commission

City Manager Date

This plat conforms to the requirements of the city of Cordova Planning and Zoning

commission and is hereby accepted as the official plat,  subject to any and all

conditions and requirements of ordinance and  law pertaining thereto.

I hereby certify that I am a registered professional land surveyor in the state

of Alaska and that this plat represents the record dimensions of the lots.  No

field work was completed for this survey.   A ll dimensional and other details
are record and are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Michael J. Horne

No. LS-5318

Date

Date

Cordova, Alaska  99574
P.O. BOX 120
Gregory D Meyer

2021, for _________________________________________

My Commission Expires

Notary Public for the State of Alaska

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ Day of ______________

RECOVERED BLM BRASS CAP MONUMENT

RECOVERED 3" ALUM. POST MONUMENT

RECORD PER PLAT NO. 2003-3(R1)

RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" ALUM. CAP

SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" ALUM. CAP

Page 10 of 62



Final Plat Approval for Scott Subdivision

Page 1 of 2

AGENDA ITEM # 9b

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/9/21

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/4/21

ITEM: Final Plat Approval for Scott Subdivision

NEXT STEP: Approve Motion

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Final Plat Approval

Applicant: Dan Scott

Owner: Dan Scott/Orca Oil, Inc.

Address: 90 FIRST ST

Zoning: Low and Medium Density Residence District

Attachments: Location Map of unsubdivided property

Final Plat

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Staff recommend that the commission recommend to City Council that the request for final plat approval 

be approved.

Page 11 of 62



Final Plat Approval for Scott Subdivision

Page 2 of 2

“I move to recommend to City Council to approve the final plat request for Scott Subdivision.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

This plat creates two new lots by subdividing one large parcel. 

All property owners within 300 feet of the subdivision have been informed of the subdivision and the 

public hearing. As of the date of this memo, staff have not received any comments.

A Certificate to Plat for this property has been ordered by the surveyor and must be submitted to the 

Planning Department prior to recording the final plat.

Staff findings:

1. The proposed plat conforms to the Comprehensive Plan and City Code.

2. There are no known physical conditions present which may be hazardous to the future inhabitants 

of these tracts.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

No legal review required.

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

Page 12 of 62



S
W

E
E

T
B

R
IA

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
O

A
ST G

U
A

R
D

 LA
N

E

SO
R

R
EL LA

N
E

IN
D

U
S

T
R

Y
 W

A
Y

C
A

N
N

E
R

Y
R

O
W

S
K

I
H

IL
LROA

D

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
A

V
E

N
U

E

JI
M

POORAVENUE

ORCA
ROAD

C
O

P
P

E
R

R
IV

E
R

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

±
0 430 860215

Feet

Page 13 of 62



X
X

PROPERTY LINE TABLE

EASEMENT CENTERLINE TABLE

I, Michael J. Horne, hereby certify that I am properly registered and licensed to practice land

surveying in the state of Alaska and that this plat represents a survey made by me or under
my direct supervision, that the monuments shown hereon actually exist as described, and
that all dimensions and other details are correct.

MICHAEL J. HORNE

LS-5318

F
A
R
P
O
I
N
T

SECTIONS  21 & 22, TOWNSHIP 15 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, Copper River Meridian, Alaska.
Containing 22.61 acres more or less.

SE
RV

IN

G
ALA

SKA SINCE
19 82

Date:

Grid:Scale: 1"=

Drawn:

Checked:

WO #:

Sheet: 1 of 1 Case No.

Field Bk/Pg:Feb. 23, 2021

N/A100'

JLA

MJH

20103

N/A

144/23-24

VICINITY MAP  SCALE:  1" = 1 MILE

RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR WITH ALUMINUM CAP

RECOVERED BLM MONUMENT

X GRANT BOUNDARY POSITION (NOTHING FOUND OR SET)

Lot 1 Boundary Detail

2021, for _________________________________________

My Commission Expires

Notary Public for the State of Alaska

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ Day of ______________

Date

Cordova, Alaska  99574
P.O. BOX  xxx
Dan Scott

I hereby certify that I am the owner of the property shown and described
hereon.  I hereby request approval of this plat showing such easements for

public utilities, roadways, and alleys dedicated for public use.

on this plat have been paid through ____________________.

All real property taxes are levied by the City of Cordova on the area shown

DateAttest:  City Clerk

DatePlatting Official

DateChairman, Planning & Zoning Commission

City Manager Date

This plat conforms to the requirements of the city of Cordova Planning and Zoning

commission and is hereby accepted as the official plat,  subject to any and all
conditions and requirements of ordinance and  law pertaining thereto.

1. The error of closure of this survey does not exceed 1:5000.
2. 50' wide access and utility  easement provides access to Lot 1 only.
3. Roads or driveways developed on this property are not maintained by the city.

Roads must meet design and construction standards and must be accepted by
and dedicated to the city in order for the city to be responsible for any
maintenance.

4. Water supply systems and/or sewage disposal systems shall be located,
constructed, and equipped in accordance with requirements, and

recommendations of the State of Alaska Department of Environmental
Conservation, which governs those systems. Individual land owners should

contact that department to ensure compliance with regulations.
5. 50' Private Access Easement recorded simultaneously with this plat.

Detail A
2021, for _________________________________________

My Commission Expires

Notary Public for the State of Alaska

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ Day of ______________

I hereby certify that we are the owner of the property shown and described
hereon.  I hereby request approval of this plat showing such easements for

public utilities, roadways, and alleys dedicated for public use.

On behalf of Orca Oil, Inc.

Representative for Lot 9 Cannery
Row Subdivision

Page 14 of 62



Final Plat Approval for Pettingill Subdivision

Page 1 of 2

AGENDA ITEM # 9c

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/9/21

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/4/21

ITEM: Final Plat Approval for Pettingill Subdivision

NEXT STEP: Approve Motion

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Final Plat Approval

Applicant: Beth Pirtle

Owner: Beth Pirtle/Estate of Elizabeth Pettingill

Address: CRH MI 6.5 EYAK DR

Zoning: Unrestricted 

Attachments: Location Map of unsubdivided property

Final Plat

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Staff recommend that the commission recommend to City Council that the request for final plat approval 

be approved.

Page 15 of 62



Final Plat Approval for Pettingill Subdivision

Page 2 of 2

“I move to recommend to City Council to approve the final plat request for Pettingill Subdivision.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

This plat creates 11 new lots by subdividing one large parcel. 

All property owners within 300 feet of the subdivision have been informed of the subdivision and the 

public hearing. As of the date of this memo, staff have not received any comments.

A Certificate to Plat for this property has been ordered by the surveyor and must be submitted to the 

Planning Department prior to recording the final plat.

Staff findings:

1. The proposed plat conforms to the Comprehensive Plan and City Code.

2. There are no known physical conditions present which may be hazardous to the future inhabitants 

of these tracts.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

No legal review required.

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

Page 16 of 62



GIN
KO D

RIV
E

JE
N

S
E
N

D
R

IV
E

GANDILL DRIV
E

COPPER RIVER HIGHWAY

EYAK DRIVE

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,

USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
±

0 370 740185

Feet

Page 17 of 62



CURVE TABLE

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370088C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370069C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370069C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370088C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370088C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370088C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370088C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370069C

ZONE A
FEMA Map No.
0200370069C

I, Michael J. Horne, hereby certify that I am properly registered and licensed to practice land

surveying in the state of Alaska and that this plat represents a survey made by me or under
my direct supervision, that the monuments shown hereon actually exist as described, and
that all dimensions and other details are correct.

MICHAEL J. HORNE

LS-5318

SECTION  32, TOWNSHIP 15 SOUTH, RANGE 2 WEST, Copper River Meridian, Alaska.
Containing 38.74 acres more or less.

SE
RV

IN

G
ALA

SKA SINCE
19 82

Date:

Grid:Scale: 1"=

Drawn:

Checked:

WO #:

Sheet: 1 of 1 Case No.

Field Bk/Pg:Feb. 23, 2021

N/A200'

JLA

MJH

20140

N/A

N/A

VICINITY MAP  SCALE:  1" = 1 MILE

RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" ALUMINUM CAP

RECOVERED BLM MONUMENT

5/8" REBAR WITH 2" ALUM. CAP

2021, for _________________________________________

My Commission Expires

Notary Public for the State of Alaska

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ Day of ______________

Date

Cordova, Alaska  99574
P.O. BOX  xxx
Beth Pirtle

I hereby certify that I am the owner of the property shown and described
hereon.  I hereby request approval of this plat showing such easements for

public utilities, roadways, and alleys dedicated for public use.

on this plat have been paid through ____________________.

All real property taxes are levied by the City of Cordova on the area shown

DateAttest:  City Clerk

DatePlatting Official

DateChairman, Planning & Zoning Commission

City Manager Date

This plat conforms to the requirements of the city of Cordova Planning and Zoning
commission and is hereby accepted as the official plat,  subject to any and all

conditions and requirements of ordinance and  law pertaining thereto.

SET 5/8" X 30" REBAR WITH 2" ALUMINUM CAP

MONUMENT OF RECORD

1. The error of closure of this survey does not exceed 1:5000.

2. 50' wide access and utility  easement provides access to Lots 1-5, Block 1 and

Lots 1-4, Block 2 only.

3. Roads or driveways developed on this property are not maintained by the city.

Roads must meet design and construction standards and must be accepted by

and dedicated to the city in order for the city to be responsible for any

maintenance.

4. Portions of the subdivision are located in Special Flood Hazard Area Zone A of

FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map No. 0200370069C and 0200370088C,

effective 12/16/15. A development permit must be obtained from the city prior

to any construction or development within the Special Flood Hazard Area.

Individual land owners should contact the city to understand and ensure

compliance with regulations.

5. Water supply and/or sewage disposal systems shall be located, constructed and

equipped in accordance with the requirements, standards, and

recommendations of the State of Alaska Department of Environmental

Conservation, which governs those systems. Individual land owners should

contact that department to ensure compliance with regulations.

6. Lots may contain wetlands and may require an Army Corps of Engineers Permit

prior to any development. It is the individual land owner's responsibility to

obtain this permit. A wetlands delineation was not performed for this survey.

ORIGINAL STONE MONUMENT

FLOOD HAZARD AREA

Page 18 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 1 of 17

AGENDA ITEM # 9d

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/9/21

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/4/21

ITEM: Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and 

Marine Warehouse”

NEXT STEP: Recommendation to City Council on Disposal and Disposal Method

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Recommendation to City Council on Disposal and Disposal Method 

Applicant: USDA Forest Service

Legal Description: Portion of Lot 3, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park

Area: Approx. 1,120 SF of tidelands

Zoning: None

Attachments: Location Map

Attachments A-G, identified in the Background Information timeline

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Staff suggest the following motion:

Page 19 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 2 of 17

“I move to recommend to City Council to dispose of a 1,120 square foot portion of tidelands on Lot 3, Block 

7A, Tidewater Development Park over which there are improvements commonly referred to as the “Forest 

Service Dock and Marine Warehouse” as outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by *”

Choose one of the following to insert for the asterisk:

1. Negotiating an agreement with the Forest Service to lease or purchase the property.

2. Requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property. 

3. Inviting sealed bids to lease or purchase the property.

4. Offering the property for lease or purchase at public auction.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

These tidelands have been leased to the Forest Service with no annual rent since 1965. The Forest Service has 

indicated that they are willing to lease at fair market value in the future. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Forest Service has leased a 1,120 square foot portion of tidelands (see attached location map) in the 

Cordova Harbor. The improvements on the tidelands, the dock and warehouse, are owned by the Forest 

Service. 

This property is currently shown as ‘Leased’ on the Land Disposal Maps. The following is the definition of 

the designation:

Leased – These are parcels currently leased to a business or government entity by the city and are 

not available during the lease term. There are leases that are short term and renew every two years 

and others are long term leases with substantial improvements on the property. Some leased 

property has an option to purchase. When a lease term ends, the property immediately becomes 

‘Available.’

There have been no problems related to this lease; conditions of the lease have been met. There are 

planned improvements to the marine warehouse portion of the leased area in the near future. The Forest 

Service presence in the harbor has been noted in various harbor grants in order to demonstrate the 

diversity of harbor users. The Forest Service has submitted letters of support for harbor grants. 

There has been some discussion about how this part of the harbor could be reconfigured in the future, but 

there is no concrete design as that would likely happen in conjunction with a large harbor infrastructure 

project. Staff anticipated that this would be a concern, which is why the second condition in Attachment C 

addressed future infrastructure projects. The Science Center’s lease for their office building expires in 

December 2021; however, they have already expressed the need to extend their lease an additional year.

Applicable Code:

5.22.040 - Letter of interest to lease or purchase. 

C. The planning commission shall review the letter of interest and recommend to the city council 

whether to offer the real property interest for disposal by one of the methods as described in 

Section 5.22.060(B).

Page 20 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 3 of 17

5.22.060 - Methods of disposal. 

B. In approving a disposal of an interest in city real property, the city council shall select the 

method by which the city manager will conduct the disposal from among the following:

1. Negotiate an agreement with the party who submitted a letter of interest to lease or purchase 

the property;

2. Invite sealed bids to lease or purchase the property;

3. Offer the property for lease or purchase at public auction;

4. Request sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property.

1/31/19 – Forest Service submitted a letter (Attachment A) requesting a renewal of the lease. The 1965 

lease (Attachment B) had a lease renewal clause that could be exercised at the option of the Forest 

Service and the city. 

8/21/19 – City staff met with Forest Service staff and reviewed the renewal request and the lease with the 

city attorney. City staff and attorney determined that it would not be possible to renew under the 

terms of the old lease as it was in conflict with city ordinances due to how limited the language 

and how old the lease was. In order to negotiate a new lease with the Forest Service, the Forest 

Service would need to go through the city’s land disposal process. City staff sent the Forest 

Service a letter (Attachment C) explaining two conditions staff anticipated would be necessary 

for a new lease. The Forest Service indicated that their original letter requesting renewal of the 

lease would serve as the letter of interest for the land disposal process. 

3/5/20 – At a Harbor Commission meeting, the commission passed Resolution 03-20-01 (Attachment D), 

which recommends a renegotiation of the lease for a five-year term.

3/12/20 – Shoreside Petroleum submitted a letter (Attachment E) to the City Manager indicating interest 

in the portion of the harbor leased by the Forest Service and Science Center facilities, and 

requesting the city only enter into short-term leases. 

5/1/20 – Due to the lease expiration and the city’s COVID-19 response, the city entered into a standstill 

agreement with the Forest Service to allow for more time for the land disposal process. The standstill 

agreement is a temporary agreement to preserve status quo under existing lease terms. It is set to 

expire on March 31, 2021.

1/14/21 – The Forest Service submitted a letter (Attachment F) requesting the city negotiate directly with the 

Forest Service.

1/19/21 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission recommended City Council 

negotiate directly with the Forest Service. Towards the end of the meeting, they reconsidered and 

referred the item to the Harbor Commission. From the approved minutes:

M/Bolin S/Hall to recommend to City Council to dispose of a 1,120 square foot portion of 

tidelands on Lot 3, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park over which there are improvements 

commonly referred to as the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse” as outlined in Cordova 

Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by negotiating an agreement with the Forest Service to lease or 

purchase the property.

Page 21 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 4 of 17

Bolin said the dock was vital to the Forest Service and has been there since 1965 and it is time to 

move forward with a new lease. Hall said the Forest Service owns the facilities and the city can’t 

just kick them out. He agreed with at least a five-year lease timeline.

M/Hall S/Bolin to amend the motion by striking “or purchase.”

Upon voice vote, motion to amend passed 4-2.

Yea: Bolin, Lohse, Hall, Trumblee

Nay: Bird, Baenen

Lohse said he thought they needed to renew the lease, but not for long-term. He wanted to see the 

city work with the Forest Service. He did think the lease amount was very low. Baenen verified 

with Stavig that the recommendation from the Harbor Commission was prior to Shoreside 

Petroleum sending a letter. A floating fuel dock would be a multi-million-dollar facility convenient 

for the fishermen. He wanted this to go back to the Harbor Commission. Trumblee agreed and said 

a fuel dock would bring money to the community.

Bird noted that looking at the timeline, the Forest Service did submit a letter well in advance of the 

lease expiring. She said the Harbor Commission could be involved with City Council as the 

process continued. She said a five-year lease seemed reasonable.

M/Baenen S/Lohse to refer this to the Harbor Commission to let them weigh in on the interest 

from Shoreside Petroleum to put in a floating fuel dock.

Lohse said there was the possibility of a large harbor infrastructure investment and wanted to 

hear from the Harbor Commission. Hall said that the current lease expires in March and 

verified with staff that they would likely have to look into extending the standstill agreement.

Upon voice vote, motion to refer failed 3-3.

Yea: Baenen, Lohse, Trumblee

Nay: Bird, Bolin, Hall

Bird said that the main motion does not specify a lease term. City Council can also request 

consultation of the Harbor Commission.

Upon voice vote, main motion passed 4-2.

Yea: Bird, Bolin, Hall, Trumblee

Nay: Baenen, Lohse

During Audience Comments, the commission reconsidered the motion that had passed and referred the issue 

to the Harbor Commission. From the approved minutes:

M/Trumblee S/Baenen to reconsider the motion that passed concerning the recommendation on the 

letter of interest from the USDA Forest Service.

Trumblee said she wanted to let the Harbor Commission see the letter from Shoreside. Baenen 

agreed. Stavig said that they would now vote again on the original motion with the recommendation to 

City Council.

Page 22 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 5 of 17

Upon voice vote, main motion failed 3-3.

Yea: Bird, Bolin, Hall

Nay: Baenen, Lohse, Trumblee

M/Baenen S/Lohse to refer the agenda item to the Harbor Commission.

Bird clarified that the agenda item would be going to the Harbor Commission and then back to the 

Planning Commission for the recommendation. Baenen verified with staff that the letter from 

Shoreside had not been presented to the Harbor Commission.

Upon voice vote, motion to refer passed 4-1.

Yea: Bird, Baenen, Lohse, Trumblee

Nay: Bolin

2/10/21 – At the Harbor Commission Regular Meeting, the commission discussed the lease, but took no 

action.

3/3/21 – At the Harbor Commission Special Meeting, the commission passed Resolution 03-21-01 

(Attachment G).

VI. LEGAL ISSUES:

Legal review of lease required.

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

Page 23 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 6 of 17

Location Map

Page 24 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 7 of 17

Attachment A

Page 25 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 8 of 17

Attachment B

Page 26 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 9 of 17

Page 27 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 10 of 17

Page 28 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 11 of 17

Page 29 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 12 of 17

Page 30 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 13 of 17

Attachment C

Page 31 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 14 of 17

Attachment D

Page 32 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 15 of 17

Attachment E

Page 33 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 16 of 17

Attachment F

Page 34 of 62



Letter of Interest from USDA Forest Service for the “Forest Service Dock and Marine Warehouse”

Page 17 of 17

Attachment G

CORDOVA HARBOR COMMISSION

CORDOVA, ALASKA

RESOLUTION 03-21-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE HARBOR COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RECOMMENDING THAT CORDOVA CITY COUNCIL DIRECT STAFF TO RENEGOTIATE THE 

USFS LEASE WITHIN THE NORTH HARBOR AT FAIR MARKET VALUE AND WITH A MAXIMUM 

TERM OF 5 YEARS AND FLEXIBILITY OF THE LOCATION OF THE LEASE

WHEREAS, the current lease between the City of Cordova and the USFS was established in 1965 for 1 

dollar, expired on May 31, 2020 and the city and USFS currently have a standstill agreement in place and 

WHEREAS, the Harbor Commission would like to see the property leased at fair market value to the 

USFS; and

WHEREAS, the current location of the USFS dock will impede certain harbor expansion; and

WHEREAS, the current Harbor Facilities Master Plan calls for expansion towards the USFS dock and the 

PWSSC; and

WHEREAS, the Cordova Harbor Commission previously passed a resolution on December 9th, 2015 and 

March 5th 2020 giving the USFS notice of the Harbor’s intentions, and

WHEREAS, the Cordova Harbor Commission has identified multiple moorage options for the USFS 

vessels, including but not limited to, sharing moorage at State of Alaska dock at the South side of the harbor, and

WHEREAS, the Harbor Commission and Harbor and Port Department are constantly assessing and 

reassessing possibilities of reconfiguration and/or expansion of Harbor infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the Harbor Commission and Harbor and Port Department is exploring future broader 

developments in the City Harbor and therefore, is requesting flexibility on the part of any current lessees within the 

harbor, such as the USFS; and

WHEREAS, discussions lately between City Staff and USFS Staff have been agreeable and both sides 

understand that the future may bring altered docks, floats and could even include establishment of ancillary 

businesses within the harbor boundaries and both are committed to revisit the lease if a need arises to change the 

term or change to a location that would be acceptable for the USFS needs; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Harbor Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 

recommends renegotiation of the USFS lease for fair market value and with a maximum term of 5 years and 

flexibility of the location of the lease.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE 3rd DAY OF MARCH, 2021.

____________________________________________________

Vice Chairman Andy Craig

____________________________________________________

Tony Schinella, Cordova Harbormaster

Page 35 of 62



Resolution 21-01 - 2021 Land Disposal Maps

Page 1 of 4

AGENDA ITEM # 9e

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/9/21

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/4/21

ITEM: Resolution 21-01 - 2021 Land Disposal Maps

NEXT STEP: Discuss

      

_____ INFORMATION

_____ MOTION

__x__   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

The Land Disposal Maps are updated annually. At this time, the Planning Commission should review the 

2021 Land Disposal Maps in order to make a recommendation to City Council to adopt the maps.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

“I move to approve Resolution 21-01”

Once the motion to approve the resolution is on the table, the commission should discuss the maps and 

make changes as they see fit. For clarity, please discuss each action separately.

If an action clearly has unanimous consent, no motion to amend is necessary. If there are differing 

opinions concerning any amendments, then a motion to amend the maps should be made and voted on by 

voice vote.

Page 36 of 62



Resolution 21-01 - 2021 Land Disposal Maps

Page 2 of 4

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Land disposals can be a revenue source for the city.

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The descriptions of the map designations and the update policy are on the cover page of the 2021 Land 

Disposal Maps document, attached. 

These maps are meant to be a simple, easy-to-understand resource for the public. In the past, there have been 

conversations about adding more detail to the maps, but ultimately, staff, the Planning Commission, and City 

Council have kept the maps as easy to understand as possible and have been cautious about making the maps 

too confusing by adding too much detail, designations, or labels.

The 2020 Land Disposal Maps are available on the city’s webpage (under Land Use and Development E-

Forms): http://www.cityofcordova.net/document-central

General Changes to the 2021 Land Disposal Maps:

- Parcel layer has been updated with new subdivisions.

- Parcel lines more accurate, fixed errors in parcel lines, etc.

- New aerial photography that is more recent.

Specific Updates by Map Page:

- New England Cannery Road

 Property near Shelter Cove which contains the old rock pit and burn pile has been changed 

to the designation ‘Not Available’ by the Planning Commission at their 1/19 Regular 

Meeting.

 Label added for City Quarry/Burn Pile.

- Ocean Dock Subdivision

 Available portion of shipyard moved to the east per concurrence from Harbor Commission.

- North Fill Development Park

 The lot at the intersection of Coast Guard Lane and Jim Poor Ave, previously shown as 

‘Leased’ has been purchased and removed from the map.

- Old Town

 One lot just north of the Water Tank, previously shown as ‘Leased’ has been purchased and 

removed from the map.

 The eastern half of Lot 3, Block 17, Original Townsite (requested by Kuntz) is shown as 

‘Available’ per Resolution 20-02.

- Odiak Park

 Southwest lot at end of Center Drive cul-de-sac ‘Available’ after Planning Commission 

discussion and staff review. Staff determined that the lot was not adequate or needed for 

snow removal purposes and there was no city infrastructure located on the property. 

1/19/21 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission discussed the Land Disposal 

Maps and referred them to the Harbor Commission. From the approved minutes:

M/Hall S/Bolin to approve Resolution 21-01.

Page 37 of 62

http://www.cityofcordova.net/document-central
http://www.cityofcordova.net/document-central
http://www.cityofcordova.net/document-central


Resolution 21-01 - 2021 Land Disposal Maps

Page 3 of 4

The commission reviewed each map in the Land Disposal Maps. On the New England Cannery 

Road map, Baenen said that the property with the rock quarry should be made ‘Not Available.’ 

Bolin said he agreed, the pit had been used to develop a lot of Cordova in the past and would be a 

key roll in the future. Bird verified that this was the property that they received a letter of interest 

for in 2020. The was unanimous consent from the commission to make the lot ‘Not Available.’

Bolin asked why the triangle piece below Shelter Cove was ‘Not Available.’ Stavig said he could 

look into it for the next meeting. Hall said that overall, the aerial photography was getting fairly 

old on the maps. Stavig said they could look at some different options for aerial photography at the 

next meeting. 

Bolin verified that the lease in the bottom south east corner of the South Fill Development Park 

map was to the Copper River Watershed Project. Lohse verified that the lots on the west end of the 

South Fill were used for snow dumping and harbor parking. Baenen asked if there was a private 

easement on the city-owned lots at the intersection of Nicholoff Way and Railroad Avenue, and if 

that could be shown on the maps. Stavig said he would research it.

On the Odiak Slough map, Lohse verified that the lot on Forestry Way was used by the city as a 

snow dump. On the Whitshed Road map, Baenen verified that the lot on the highway adjacent to 

Eagle Contracting was purchased by the city seven years ago with the intent that it would be the 

location of a new fire/police facility. 

On the Odiak Park map, Bolin asked why the lots to the south of Center Drive were ‘Not 

Available.’ Stavig said he thought there was a significant drainage through there, but he could do 

more research. Bolin said it was also used as a city snow dump. Bolin asked Stavig to look into 

the two lots at the cul-de-sac of Center Drive as well. 

On the Power Creek Road map, Lohse asked why the cemetery was shown as ‘Available.’ Stavig 

said that many of the large parcels that are shown as ‘Available – Requires Subdivision’ contain 

city infrastructure. The maps can get very complicated if every city use gets noted on the map. 

Bird and Baenen spoke in favor of adding a notation for the cemetery. 

On the Eyak Lake map, Bolin noted that Elmer’s Point Drive had a street sign that said Kimmick 

Way. Stavig said the Harbor Commission wanted to review the maps. 

M/Bolin S/Baenen to refer to 2021 Land Disposal Maps to the Harbor Commission. 

Upon voice vote, motion to refer passed 6-0.

Yea: Bird, Baenen, Bolin, Lohse, Hall, Trumblee

2/10/21 – At the Harbor Commission Regular Meeting, the commission discussed the Land Disposal 

Maps, specifically the shipyard area, but took no action with the maps. 

2/18/21 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission discussed the maps. From the 

unapproved minutes: 

Page 38 of 62



Resolution 21-01 - 2021 Land Disposal Maps

Page 4 of 4

Stavig said he provided the maps with either aerial photography for the commission to decide 

which they liked best. He explained the changes to the map which were detailed in the memo. He 

then provided information on properties that he said would be addressed at the meeting:

- Small triangle lot to south of Shelter Cove: It has deed restrictions including that it can’t be 

sold. The entire lot is in a floodplain and is zoned Conservation.

- Corner of Nicholoff and Railroad Avenue: Those are three lots used for the boat haul out 

on the South Fill. There is a “floating easement” on the property, which means it is 

undefined. 

- Two lots adjacent and south of Center Drive: These have old deed restrictions for well use, 

and also contain a lot of drainage from the highway. The flat land visible from the highway 

is a part of the ROW. 

- Two lots at cul-de-sac end of Center Drive: The longer lot has a sewer easement which 

restricts usable area significantly. He did not see anything on the other lot, but noted that in 

the past, both of these lots had been marked as snow dumps.

Hall said he preferred the newer aerial photos. Lohse agreed and said he would like to look into 

making the lower of the two lots on the Center Drive cul-de-sac ‘Available.’ Stavig said he would 

get something from Public Works for the next meeting. Bolin said the lots south of Center Drive 

were critical and that they never used the cul-de-sac lots. Baenen said he would like to have a 

label on the quarry on Orca Road. Bolin said to add one for the burn pile as well. 

3/3/21 – At the Harbor Commission Special Meeting, the commission concurred with making an 

approximate area in the southeast corner of the shipyard lot ‘Available,’ with the remainder of that 

property ‘Not Available.’

  

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

Legal issues should be considered on a property by property basis.

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

Conflicts or environmental issues should be considered on a property by property basis.

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

Page 39 of 62



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA

PLANNING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION 21-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

ADOPT THE 2021 LAND DISPOSAL MAPS

WHEREAS, the City of Cordova’s City Manager and City Planner are directed by Cordova 

Municipal Code Section 5.22.040(B) – The city manager shall refer a letter of interest from a qualified 

interested party to the city planner. If the city planner finds that the real property is available for lease or 

purchase, the city planner shall schedule the letter of interest for review by the planning commission; and 

City of Cordova’s Planning Commission is directed by Cordova Municipal Code Section 5.22.040(C) – 

The planning commission shall review the letter of interest and recommend to the city council whether to 

offer the real property interest for disposal by one of the methods as described in Section 5.22.060(B); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that annually reviewing and recommending 

the Land Disposal Maps for City Council’s approval will enable the City Manager and City Planner to 

efficiently determine if land is available for purchase, lease, or lease to purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has identified these Land Disposal Maps as the most current 

and updated version to be used in the land disposal process; and

WHEREAS, having annually updated maps will benefit the citizens of Cordova by providing maps 

for public review.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 

Cordova, Alaska hereby recommend the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska adopt the 2021 Land 

Disposal Maps.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 9TH DAY OF MARCH, 2021

______________________________

Nancy Bird, Chair

    

ATTEST:

______________________________

Leif Stavig, City Planner

Page 40 of 62

planner2
Stamp



2021 Land Disposal Maps

Adopted by City Council: xx/xx/xx

Map Designations

Available – Available to purchase, lease, or lease with an option to purchase. Any of these lots 

may have conditions or special criteria that must be met. 

Available - Requires Subdivision – These parcels are considered ‘Available.’ These are large 

parcels of land which would most likely be developed as a subdivision. The disposal process for 

these parcels is complex and could take a significant amount of time. Many require some or all 

of the following: city acquiring title to the land from the state, an extensive amount of surveying, 

or subdivision development agreements. Many of these parcels include city improvements that 

would not be disposed, such as access roads, water infrastructure, trails, cemeteries, etc.

Not Available – These parcels include substandard lots, snow dumps, property with 

improvements/buildings on them, or other lots used or occupied by the city. The city manager 

will accept letters of interest from an interested party who requests the property designation be 

changed to ‘Available,’ however the existing city use of the property will be examined and 

carefully weighed against the letter of interest.

Tidelands – All requests to purchase tidelands will be reviewed by the Planning Commission as 

they are received. The Planning Commission will make a recommendation on disposing of the 

tidelands to City Council.

Leased – These are parcels currently leased to a business or government entity by the city and 

are not available during the lease term. There are leases that are short term and renew every two 

years and others are long term leases with substantial improvements on the property. Some 

leased property has an option to purchase. When a lease term ends, the property immediately 

becomes ‘Available.’

Update Policy

Maps will be updated on an annual basis by the Planning Department staff, reviewed by the 

Planning Commission, and adopted by City Council. This update process begins each year with 

updated maps being presented to the Planning Commission in January, but the maps may be 

modified throughout the year on a case-by-case basis.

For more information on the land disposal process, refer to Chapter 5.22 of the Cordova 

Municipal Code, or direct your questions to the Planning Department staff.

Page 41 of 62



Shelter Cove

Orca

Crater Lake

City Quarry/

Burn Pile

O
RC

A
 R

O
A

D

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 760 1,520380

Feet

±

New England Cannery Road

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 42 of 62



AML

Ferry

Copper River Seafoods

Shelter Cove

Tripod H
O

R
C

A
 R

O
A

D

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 440 880220

Feet

±

Ocean Dock Subdivision

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 43 of 62



Coast Guard

AML

JI
M

 P
O

O
R

 A
V

E
N

U
E

C
O

P
P

E
R

 R
IV

E
R

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
 A

V
E
N

U
E

SW
E
E

T
B

R
IA

R
 S

T
R

E
E
T

SORREL LANE

H
A

ID
A LA

N
E

IN
D

U
S
T

R
Y

 W
A

Y

COAST G
UARD

 LANE

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 140 28070

Feet

±

North Fill Development Park

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 44 of 62



City Hall

Elementary School

Bidarki

Harbor

Ocean Beauty

Trident

Trident

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

A
L

L
E

Y

C
O

P
P

E
R

 R
IV

E
R

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

JI
M

 P
O

O
R

 A
V

EN
U

E

S
E

C
O

N
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
D

U
S
T

R
Y

 W
A

Y

F
O

U
R

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BREAKWATER AVENUE

T
H

IR
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BROWNING AVENUE

MARINE WAY

DAVIS AVENUE

W
A

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

H
A

ID
A LA

N
E

F
R

O
N

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

FEDERAL WAY

WEST COUNCIL AVENUE

OBSERVATION AVENUE

A
L

L
E

Y

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 250 500125

Feet

±

Tidewater Development Park & Cordova Industrial Park

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 45 of 62



City Hall

Elementary School

Bidarki

Water Tank

rident

Coast Guard Housing

A
L

L
E

Y

LAKE AVENUE

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C
O

P
P

E
R

 R
IV

E
R

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
E

C
O

N
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
K

I H
IL

L
 R

O
A

D

ADAMS AVENUE

DAVIS AVENUE

F
O

U
R

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BROWNING AVENUE

T
H

IR
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

COUNCIL AVENUE

F
R

O
N

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

F
IF

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

YOUNG DRIVE

A
L

D
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
A

B
IN

 R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

S
IX

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
IG

H
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

FEDERAL WAY

WEST COUNCIL AVENUE

N
IN

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

ALDER WAY

WEST DAVIS AVENUE

OBSERVATION AVENUE

ADAMS AVENUE

A
L

L
E

Y

F
O

U
R

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

T
H

IR
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
L

L
E

Y

A
L

L
E

Y

COUNCIL AVENUE

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 225 450112.5

Feet

±

Old Town

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 46 of 62



C

AC

Harbor

Trident

NICHOLOFF W
AY

HARBOR LOOP

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 160 32080

Feet

±

South Fill Development Park

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 47 of 62



High School
CO

PPER
 R

IV
ER

 H
IG

H
W

AY

WHITSHED ROAD

S
O

U
T

H
 S

E
C

O
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

RAILROAD ROW

CHASE AVENUE

P
IP

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

FISHERMAN AVENUE

SOUTH ORCA STREET

SAWMILL AVENUE

C
L

IF
F

 T
R

A
IL

SOUTH MARINE WAY

S
O

U
T

H
 F

IR
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

BO
A

R
D

W
A

LK
 W

AY

S
E

C
O

N
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

FORESTRY WAY

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 130 26065

Feet

±

Odiak Slough

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 48 of 62



Elementary School

AC

Hospital

High School

Camper Park

Reservoir

WHITSHED ROAD

LAKE AVENUE

COPPER RIVER HIGHWAY

CHASE AVENUE

LAKESHORE DRIVE

NICHOLOFF W
AY

CENTER DRIVE

ORCA INLET DRIVE

A
L

L
E

Y
S

E
C

O
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

SOUTH SECOND STREET

WHISKEY RIDGE ROAD

BLUFF TRAIL

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 550 1,100275

Feet

±

Whitshed Road

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 49 of 62



ary School

Hospital

Coast Guard Housing

LAKE AVENUE

CHASE AVENUE

COPPER RIVER HIGHWAY

L
E

F
E

V
R

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

LAKESHORE DRIVE

CENTER DRIVE

A
L

L
E

Y

WHITSHED ROAD

RA
IL

RO
A

D
 R

O
W

POWER CREEK ROAD

ADAMS AVENUE

ALDER WAY

B
IR

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
IX

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
IG

H
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
O

LF H
ILL

N
IN

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
E

D
A

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

IN
G

R
E

S
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

ADAMS AVENUE

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 250 500125

Feet

±

Odiak Park

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 50 of 62



using

Tripod Hill

Cemetery
POWER CREEK ROAD

LAKE AVENUE

L
E

F
E

V
R

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

CHASE AVENUE

SUNNYSIDE DRIVE

YOUNG DRIVE

ALDER WAY

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 480 960240

Feet

±

Power Creek Road

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 51 of 62



COPPER RIVER HIGHWAY

ALPINE FALLS CIRCLE

WOODLAND DRIVE

LAKESHORE DRIVE

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D
 D

R
IV

E

ELMERS POINT DRIVE

MT ECCLES STREET

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 440 880220

Feet

±

Eyak Lake

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Page 52 of 62



Fire Substation

Eyak Lake

FIV
E

 M
IL

E
 L

O
O

P

COPPER RIVER HIGHWAY

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community
0 170 34085

Feet

±

Five Mile Loop

City Property

Available

Available - Requires Subdivision

Not Available

Tidelands

Leased

Area inside red lines is in the Red Avalanche Zone.

Property is subject to City Code and FEMA 

requirements, which include: 

1. City can only lease property.

2. No permanent structures allowed.

Page 53 of 62



Letter of Interest from Dutch Marine Industries, LLC for a Portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

Page 1 of 4

AGENDA ITEM # 9f

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/9/21

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/4/21

ITEM: Letter of Interest from Dutch Marine Industries, LLC for a Portion of Tract 1A of 

the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

NEXT STEP: Recommendation to City Council on Disposal and Disposal Method

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

This action item is contingent on the Planning Commission passing Resolution 21-01 with the area 

designated as ‘Available’ and if this has not occurred then no action should be taken. Any action on 

this item is still pending City Council adoption of the 2021 Land Disposal Maps designating this 

area ‘Available.’

Requested Actions: Recommendation to City Council on Disposal and Disposal Method 

Applicant: Dutch Marine Industries, LLC

Legal Description: Portion of Tract 1A, Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

Area: Area indicated in letter of interest = 60’ x 100’ = 6,000 SF

Zoning: Waterfront Industrial

Attachments: Location Map

Letter of Interest

Page 54 of 62



Letter of Interest from Dutch Marine Industries, LLC for a Portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

Page 2 of 4

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Staff suggest the following motion:

“I move to recommend to City Council to dispose of a portion of Tract 1A, Ocean Dock Subdivision #2 as 

outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by *”

Choose one of the following to insert for the asterisk:

1. Negotiating an agreement with the Forest Service to lease or purchase the property.

2. Requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property. 

3. Inviting sealed bids to lease or purchase the property.

4. Offering the property for lease or purchase at public auction.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Lease could generate revenue for the city.

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Dutch Marine Industries, LLC (DMI) has submitted a letter of interest for a portion of Tract 1A of the 

Ocean Dock Subdivision #2. They are requesting an area around 60’x100’. DMI attended a recent Harbor 

Commission meeting to share their plans, which is partially why the commission recommended the 

‘Available’ area be located in a different portion of the shipyard.

The lot is currently used for outdoor boat storage and boat haul outs which are managed by the Harbor 

Department. 

Applicable Code:

5.22.040 - Letter of interest to lease or purchase. 

C. The planning commission shall review the letter of interest and recommend to the city council 

whether to offer the real property interest for disposal by one of the methods as described in 

Section 5.22.060(B).

5.22.060 - Methods of disposal. 

B. In approving a disposal of an interest in city real property, the city council shall select the 

method by which the city manager will conduct the disposal from among the following:

1. Negotiate an agreement with the party who submitted a letter of interest to lease or purchase 

the property;

2. Invite sealed bids to lease or purchase the property;

3. Offer the property for lease or purchase at public auction;

4. Request sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property.

VI. LEGAL ISSUES:

Legal review of lease required.

Page 55 of 62



Letter of Interest from Dutch Marine Industries, LLC for a Portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

Page 3 of 4

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

Page 56 of 62



Letter of Interest from Dutch Marine Industries, LLC for a Portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

Page 4 of 4

Location Map

Page 57 of 62



Page 58 of 62



Page 59 of 62



Planning Commission Pending Calendar

Items pending for April Regular Meeting

- Proposals from RFP for Eastern Half of Lot 3, Block 17, Original Townsite

- Final Plat Approval 

- Building Code Progress Update

August 2021

- Planning Commission CIP List to City Council (Annual)

September 2021

- Comprehensive Plan Review (Annual)

January 2022

- 2022 Land Disposal Maps (Annual)

February 2022

- Planning Commissioner’s Training & Planning Conference in Anchorage (Annual)

Page 60 of 62



SUNDAY

FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

28 01 02 03 04 05 06

Cordova General Election 7:00 PM - City Council Regular

7AM - 8PM Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

6:30 PM - Planning Commission 6:00 PM - Harbor Commission

Regular Meeting Regular Meeting

(Electronic) (Cordova Center Room B)

7:00 PM - School Board Regular

Meeting

(High School Library)

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

6:00 PM - CCMC Board Regular

Meeting

(CCMC Conference Room)

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

City Closed - Seward's Day 6:00 PM - Parks and Recreation

Commission Regular Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

2021 MARCH

Page 61 of 62



SUNDAY

FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

6:30 PM - Planning Commission 6:00 PM - Harbor Commission

Regular Meeting Regular Meeting

(Electronic) (Cordova Center Room B)

7:00 PM - School Board Regular

Meeting

(High School Library)

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

25 26 27 28 29 30 01

6:00 PM - Parks and Recreation 6:00 PM - CCMC Board Regular

Commission Regular Meeting Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (CCMC Conference Room)

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

2021 APRIL

Page 62 of 62


	03-09-21 Regular Meeting Agenda_0
	02-18-21 Regular Meeting Minutes_0
	03-09-21 Planners Report_0
	Memo - Cannery Row_0
	LocationMap
	CanneryRowSubd
	Memo - Scott_0
	LocationMap
	Scott Subd
	Memo - Pettingill_0
	Location Map
	Pettingill
	MemoForestService_0
	Memo - 2021 Land Disposal Maps_0
	Resolution 21-01_0
	2021 Land Disposal Maps
	2021 Cover_0
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12

	MemoDMI_0
	DMI Letter of Interest
	03PendingAgenda_0
	03Calendar
	Calendar

	04Calendar
	Calendar


